

Superintendent Rex Weltz 324-2001 Business Manager Janelle Mickelson 324-2040

Board of Trustees Meeting

Lincoln Center 1325 Poplar St., Helena, MT 59601 And on TEAMS

Tuesday, May 10th, 2022 5:30 p.m.

MINUTES

ATTENDANCE - Present unless otherwise noted.

Luke Muszkiewicz, Board Chair Siobhan Hathhorn, Vice Chair Elizabeth "Libby" Goldes, Trustee John McEwen, Trustee Terry Beaver, Trustee Jennifer McKee, Trustee Jennifer Walsh, Trustee Janet Armstrong, Trustee

Rylie Schoenfeld, Helena High School Representative Eliza Lay, Capital High School Representative

Rex Weltz, Superintendent
Josh McKay, Assistant Superintendent
Brian Cummings, Assistant Superintendent
Janelle Mickelson, Business Manager
Barb Ridgway, Chief of Staff
Gary Myers, Technology Administrator
Joslyn Davidson, Curriculum Administrator
Rob Brewer, Maintenance Manager
Jane Shawn, HEA President
Brett Zanto, Capital High School Principal
Steve Thennis, Helena High School Principal
Walt Chancy, Assistant Principal Capital High School
Lisa Cordingley, Helena Education Foundation Executive Director

Many guests of the public as well as Helena School District staff, students, and their families

I. CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Board Chair Luke Muszkiewicz called the meeting to order at 5:31 p.m. and led the Pledge of Allegiance.

II. REVIEW AGENDA

Board Chair Luke Muszkiewicz commented. "We will be moving our Student Representative Reports up on the agenda, after the last item for recognition. This is Eliza and Rylie's last meeting as Student Representatives, so we would like to say a few nice words about them at that time as well. We also have two Trustees who are concluding their term with the Board of Trustees, Trustee Libby Goldes and Trustee John McEwen. This will be their last Board meeting with us and so when we get to Board Comments, we will be saying a few words in recognition of their service. After that we are having a closed session with our District counsel to review a variety of legal items. We get through every public component before we do that. We will then come out of closed session simply to adjourn the meeting."

III. RECOGNITION

A. Special Education Lifetime Achievement Award

Capital High School Principal Brett Zanto commented. "Good evening. Thank you for taking the time here this evening to recognize Mr. Walt Chancy. It's my pleasure to not only introduce him but also just to help recognize his receiving of the Special Education Lifetime Achievement Award from the Montana Council for Exceptional Children. What are just a few of the items he's been involved in that would help him be the recipient of such an award? He has had years of unwavering support of both students and staff alike at Capital High School, and his overseeing and involvement with the Special Education Department at Capital High. He has helped oversee the implementation of multiple tier one, tier two, and tier three supports for all students at Capital High. He has also been involved in overseeing the Montana Behavioral Initiative, and the MTSS team. Maybe six or seven years ago, after receiving for many years silver status and gold status, we were finally able to receive the platinum status. It may have been the first time a AA high school in the state of Montana reached platinum status and I know it was because of his efforts in overseeing that process. There is no doubt he is very deserving of such an honor. At this time, Mr. Chancy, if you can come forward."

Capital High School Assistant Principal Walt Chancy commented. "This journey started over thirty years ago with Special Education. Although I was in the profession a lot longer than that, I really learned about Special Education at that time. I have to share this recognition with all the special educators that I've worked with in Helena, and especially many of you may remember, Dolores Slovarp. She is the person who really introduced me to inclusion, differentiated instruction, and coteaching. If it were not for her, I would not be standing here so I have to share that with her. Thank you so much. It's been a journey and I've loved every second of it. Thank you very much.

B. Helena Education Foundation Harrison Writing Awards

Helena Education Foundation Executive Director, Lisa Cordingley, commented. "Thank you. We are delighted to be here. I've brought a guest, Jason Loble, who is a member of the HEF Board of Directors, and he is the chair of the Harrison Selection Committee. Every piece of writing that is submitted to Pen and Ink Magazine is also eligible to be considered for a Harrison Award, and they are blinded when they come to us, so we don't know until after the selections have been made who the recipients are. Tonight, we are here to present the award which also carries with it a stipend that is endowed by Dr. Lee Harrison. The endowment has done so well that this year we were able to increase the stipend by one hundred dollars for each of the students. Their gift from us is \$350 and their works will appear in Pen and Ink Magazine which I had the advantage of reviewing today in its proof form at Allegra and it is beautiful. We will have a launch party for Pen and Ink at the Holter Museum on May 24th at 5:30 p.m. So, without further ado, I would like to invite up Ella Shropshire, Elinor Goehring, and Rebecca Smilie."

Rebecca Smilie commented. "I am a senior at Capital High School. I want to thank the Board of Trustees and the Helena Education Foundation for encouraging young people to write. I know for me personally; it's made a difference to be acknowledged for my writing. I'd like to thank my English teachers in high school for encouraging me to better my writing, and my parents and my brother for always supporting me. Thank you."

Ella Shropshire commented. "I would like to thank all of you for making this possible. This means a lot to me. I would also like to thank my English teachers, but especially my creative writing teacher who inspired me to go further into my poetry. I'd like to thank my whole family- my mother, my brother, and my father especially, because he has always encouraged me to keep writing and will review my poetry sometimes. Thank you to everyone."

Elinor Goehring commented. "I am a senior at Helena High School. I'd like to thank all of you and Pen and Ink for always being a place where I can channel my writing every year of high school whether I get published or not. It feels special this year to receive this award and a publication. I'd like to recognize my mom, Jennifer Goehring. After this I will be attending Hollins University in Roanoke, Virginia to study English and Dance."

C. HOSA-Future Health Professionals Montana State Leadership Conference Champions

Principal Brett Zanto commented. "I want to thank Mr. Duncan for all his efforts in working with students outside the confines of the classroom-before school, at lunch, and after school-to help prepare them for the state HOSA competition. It's great to see students being able to compete and excel in areas that they may be going into after they graduate from high school. I think it continues to go with our mantra in our school District that we are producing students that are both college and career ready. It's just great for students to be able to put those talents on display, and fortunately, we have some state champions So, Mr. Duncan, welcome."

Mr. Tanner Duncan, HOSA Advisor, commented. "Thank you, Mr. Zanto, Mr. Weltz, and the Board of Trustees. Before I recognize the students that performed exceptionally well at the State

Leadership Conference in Billings, I think I should share a little bit more about HOSA as a chapter. HOSA is the future health professionals in the Helena community. We embrace leadership skills; and we have outreach and connections with community members whether it be current health care professionals or individuals in assisted living homes. We also do community service projects, and we are currently working to get a blood drive at Capital High School. On top of all of that, we develop strong professional health science skills, and we take those skills to the State Leadership Conference. We had three students this year that that took gold. 17 of our 19 students that we took over there brought home medals. Two students were not able to be here tonight, Karter Arensmeyer who earned Gold in Pharmacy Science and RaeAnn Lowen who earned Gold in Behavior Health. Here tonight we have Ella Simpson who earned Gold in Surgery Tech."

Ella Simpson commented. "I'm a sophomore at Capital High and I just want to thank you guys for setting this up and Mr. Duncan for his enthusiasm with teaching us, helping us contribute to our community and all the opportunities that he provides for us."

D. State Science Olympiad Champions

Board Chair Luke Muszkiewicz commented. "We would like to congratulate Capital High State Science Olympiad champion Anna Gates who placed first in Cell Biology. I would like to introduce Helena High Principal Steve Thennis who will introduce our Helena High champions."

Principal Steve Thennis commented. "Good evening, members of the Board. It is a pleasure to be here. Science Olympiad is the premier science competition in the United States and Helena High School has a long history of success in Montana, boasting many team champions and individual champs. Coach Clair Pichette has been an integral part of the team's success for many years, giving her time and talent to our very talented students. In 2017 Ms. Pichette received the National Presidential Award for Excellence in Science and Math Teaching."

Ms. Clair Pichette commented. "Thanks, Mr. Thennis and thanks for having us here tonight. Hello to the whole Board and Mr. Beaver especially, who used to be my science teacher. I would like to reiterate what Mr. Duncan said that this really is a team effort. Science Olympiad is a team of 15 students that we can take with us to state and one of the big benefits this year was it was in person again. We competed online last year and the year before, but this year we got to go in person. Izzy, Sandra, and Jeri have been on a team now for three years. They are all juniors, and they are three of our gold medalists this year. We were not able to have Paul Reeves and Annika Nehring join us tonight-they placed gold in Environmental Chemistry."

Jeri Wilkerson commented. "Izzy and I won gold in Wright Stuff which is a competition where you build a plane out of wood and plastic that is powered by a rubber band and then you see how long it can fly. Ours lasted two minutes and five seconds. We won gold by a pretty decent margin. The other event Sandra and I did together was Remote Sensing. It's a test and you study and create a binder full of information about climate processes and you interpret satellite images from real government satellites of the earth, and we won gold for that."

E. State SkillsUSA Champions

Principal Steve Thennis commented. "SkillsUSA is a partnership of students and teachers in industry to ensure a skilled workforce. It serves students preparing for careers in trade, technical and skilled services occupations including health occupations. A highly active student club, these students get an opportunity to compete against their peers from across the state. Under the guidance of Miss Ronie Robertson, students in this area are highly competitive. When she isn't preparing students for SkillsUSA events you can find Ms. Robertson digging somewhere in a car as she teaches our Auto Tech, Auto Two and Auto Three courses."

Ms. Robertson commented. "Thank you all for having us. I am the automotive teacher at Helena High School as well as the SkillsUSA advisor. For those of you who are not aware of what SkillsUSA is, it is a vocational club mainly embodying the students in the shops-so auto, welding, and drafting. The motto of the club is *preparing for leadership in the world of work*. This year, the state SkillsUSA competition was held in Helena for the first time ever, I think. It went off wonderfully. Students competed in both skilled competitions as well as leadership competitions. Our students overall and our club in general performed exemplary-they did a fantastic job. Two of our students with us here tonight placed gold. We have Maddox Schuller who placed first in Power Equipment Technology, also referred to as Small Engines. We have Tithen FitzGerald who placed first in Job Skill Demonstration, as well as Intermediate Technical Drafting. They can tell you more about the competitions."

Tithen FitzGerald commented. "I placed first place in Job Skill Demo which is where we get up in front of a panel of judges. You get to choose what you're demonstrating, but it has to be related to the trade industry in some way. I showed how to set up a drafting board and the borders on it, and I won that. I also went to Intermediate Technical Drafting and drew a multiangular vice for that competition."

Maddox Schuller commented. "I won Power Equipment also referred to as Small Engines, which is usually what is in things like your lawn mowers. It was a lot of identification of parts and failure analysis and figuring out what was wrong with it. I would like to thank my mom for everything she helps me with."

F. Montana National Center for Women and Information Technology Aspirations in Computing State Contest

Principal Steve Thennis commented. "The NCWIT Award for Aspirations and Computing was created to promote the computing aspirations of young women, introduce them to leadership opportunities in the field, and generate visibility for women's participation in technology fields. Winners are acknowledged for their outstanding aptitude and interest in technology and computing, leadership ability, academic history, and plans for post-secondary education. Under the guidance of Mrs. Buffy Smith, our Computer Science teacher extraordinaire, there have been 26 young women as winners in this competition throughout her very esteemed career. So, at this point, I will introduce Mrs. Buffy Smith."

Mrs. Buffy Smith commented. "We have two winners here today. The first one is Sierrah Paul.

She moved to Helena and joined Helena High two years ago and she's been in my Computer Science class both years. It sounds like it's easy for these girls to win this award, but it's not. They had 3,500 high school students fill out the award and they gave seven of the awards to Montana girls and these are two of them, and she has won the last two years. Then we have Laurel Maronick and she's been in my computer science class for the last four years. She won honorable mention her freshman year and she's been an award winner for the last three years."

Sierrah Paul commented. "I would like to thank my mom who is here with me today and I would also like to thank Mrs. Smith. I will be attending Montana State for Computer Science and Photography."

Laurel Maronick commented. "Hello, I'm Laurel. I brought my father Rick, my mother Laurie, and my sister Reagan. I'm going to Seattle University next year to study Computer Science. Thank you as well to Mrs. Smith."

The Board of Trustees moved on to Student Representative Reports.

Student Representative Reports

Eliza Lay, Capital High School Representative, commented. "We had almost 50 floats registered in the Vigilante Parade from Capital High and there was a lot of positive comments from the community regarding the parade. AP testing started last week and runs through the end of this week. On Thursday, our School Leadership Team will meet with Deb Hunsaker, a Literacy Consultant, all day to review the instructional framework, discuss data from instructional rounds, discuss data pertaining to the current literacy goals, and finally begin planning and brainstorming ideas for next year. We will also be completing instructional rounds of classroom observations with her as well. Next week, on May 17th and 18th, all ninth and tenth graders will be participating in the spring iReady assessment; Tuesday will be math, and Wednesday will be reading. On Wednesday the 18th, seniors will be participating in the annual grad walk and will be excused at the beginning of the testing time to get their cap and gown and board a bus headed to their respective Elementary School. This is an event that a lot of graduating students, their parents, and former teachers enjoy. Recently, on Arbor Day at Capital High, in conjunction with Growing Friends and the city of Helena, students from third and fourth period classrooms helped plant trees along the student parking lot, and they did a great job. The Musical Comedy Murders of 1940 recently ended in a series of performances from the Capital high drama department. We had a lot of community members, students, parents, and staff attend one of the six shows. It was great to see such interest. As a member of the show, I would just like to say it was a ton of fun, and it was the best show I ever did."

Rylie Schoenfeld, Helena High School Representative, commented. "We've been pretty busy in the last month. Last Friday we also had a number of students participate in the Vigilante paradewhether that was building a float, marching in the band, or both. Last weekend we also had a number of band, choir, and orchestra students participate in the State Music Festival hosted by Helena High. Many students received superior and excellent ratings in many different performance categories and groups. Currently, we are in the process of hiring a new Assistant Principal to replace Mrs. Stephanie Thennis, who will surely be missed, and we thank her for her years at Helena High. We are also currently finalizing plans for graduation to be held on June 4th

at Nelson stadium. Also upcoming are the state meets and tournaments for our spring sports. On Thursday we will be holding our first indoor assembly in three years honoring our spring sports and numerous clubs. Coming up, our theater crew will be putting on their screenplay, God's Favorite. Last, but not least, we had 30 students and their selected educators recognized at the Celebration of Excellence."

Board Chair Luke Muszkiewicz commented. "I just want to thank you both for your service on this Board. You have always brought a great attitude to these meetings. You've always brought interesting, comprehensive, relevant reports that help us understand what's going on in our high schools. You usually aren't the first to make a comment during discussions but there's been several moments throughout the year where one of you has spoken up and made an insightful comment that truly helped redirect this Board's discussion to where it really needs to go-and that is what is best for students. That is why you are here, and it is one of the most important traditions that we have on this Board is to have two student representatives like yourselves. Your mere presence on this Board keeps us focused on what's important. Thank you very much for your service. We do have a plaque for each of you to commemorate your service on the Board."

That concluded Recognitions and Student Representative Reports. The Board of Trustees moved on to listen to the Superintendent Report given by Superintendent Rex Weltz.

IV. SUPERINTENDENT'S REPORT

Superintendent Rex Weltz began his Superintendent Report with Recognition and discussed the following topics:

- Teacher Appreciation Week
- Mother's Day
- Thank you to Student Board Representatives, Trustee Libby Goldes and Trustee John McEwen
- Thank you to our School Nurses
- Friday, May 6th, was U.S. School Lunch Hero Day in honor of our food services workers
- Dr. Wynn Randall and the Rossiter Elementary Staff-Board Work Session
- Vigilante Day Parade-thanks to students, staff, Facilities Department, and City of Helena
- Congratulations to the HEF Grant Award Recipients. Thank you to the Helena Education Foundation and the HEF Director Lisa Cordingley
- Kessler Elementary-Central Office Site Visit
- Jim Darcy Elementary-Central Office Site Visit
- Angel Fund
- High School Production of The Musical Comedy Murders of 1940
- Youth Electrum 2022 Student Art Showcase at the Holter Museum
- Thank you to Growing Friends of Helena, students, and staff in the District, and volunteers in the community for the Arbor Day Planting Event at Capital High and Helena High on Friday, April 29th
- Congratulations to Christina Sieminski who was inducted into the UM Western Educators Hall of Fame last weekend in recognition of her phenomenal dedication to education

Superintendent Weltz moved on to discuss New Business in his report including:

- Planning For Graduation
- AP Testing
- Principal Candidate Meetings
- AA Assistant Superintendents at Lincoln Center-April 29th
- Helena School Board Student Representative Selection Process
- HEA-HSD Bargaining
- Student Board Representative Process Update
- The Greater Helena Gives Campaign Begins May 5th
- Budget and Admin Pay Matrix

District Counsel, Ms. Bea Kaleva, discussed the process of reviewing the Admin Pay Matrix, including looking at the market analysis, reviewing the admin pay schedule, and communicating with similar AA Districts.

Superintendent Weltz concluded his Superintendent Report by discussing his various outreach and meetings in the community including AA Superintendent meetings, Hometown Helena, HEA, HEF, HEF-Executive Committee, Parent Advisory Council, Cabinet meetings, Lewis and Clark Health Meeting, Lewis and Clark Board of Health, and meeting with the media.

That concluded the Superintendent Report portion of the agenda.

V. GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT

Board Chair Luke Muszkiewicz commented. "We will now move on to general public comment. This is the time for comment on public matters that are not on the agenda. Public Matters do not include any pending legal matters, private personnel issues, or private student issues. Please do not attempt to address such issues at this time or you will be ruled out of order. The Board cannot enter into discussion during general public comment. So, as we discussed before, we'll go ahead and start with people who are here with us in person who would like to give public comment."

Elizabeth Hale, who lives in Helena and has been a teacher, commented. "I wanted to read you a statement I made at the county commission meeting today because I was over at the election office when the votes were being counted for the school Trustees. I was in the room with windows which looked into the room holding the ESS machines-they counted the ballots. This was in the basement of the city and county building on Election Day, May 3rd, 2022, at about 5 p.m. I saw the ESS employee hold up her handheld device-larger and thicker than my large sized iPhone-in front of the southern ESS machine. She held the device so that it was about one or two feet in front of the machine screen. Then she touched the screen of her handheld with her fingers to input information. Soon she turned purposely to give me a big smile and walked out of the ESS machine room and through the room where the ballot envelopes were being opened. Around the same time, the County Treasurer and Election Clerk-Amy Reeves-turned to me and gave me a big grin. Neither of these women turned to give me a big smile before or after this. I was observing in that space from 11:00 a.m. to 11:45 a.m. and from 4:00 p.m. to 5:40 p.m. The ESS contracts stipulate that an ESS employee must be in the room while their machines count our votes. However, we don't know how our votes are being altered, how the machine is counting, or the source code of the machine. Thus, no election we can have can be justifiably certified.

We are extremely upset that the wishes of voters are being snuffed out by those skewing election outcomes and controlling our machines, affecting the health and well-being of members of our community, state, and nation. This mistreatment has been taking place across the USA, where ESS voting machines are used. More than 30,000 ESS machines with handheld devices have been distributed across our nation. We're just upset because we're losing the freedom and American values for which so many Americans have lost their limbs and lives. We're just concerned that these machines are being used when important decisions are made for our community."

Hedi Friedlander commented online via TEAMS. "The reason for my comment today is actually baseball. I'd like to see if you guys are going to present as a new board action item or put it on the agenda for baseball. It looks like East Helena voted to have it. I know you have to get with Mr. McMahon, but that's just something that we would like to see as a community. Congratulations to the new school Board members-one with 37% of the vote out of 41,000 voters. So, about 8,000 people out of 41,000. That's just very disheartening. I hope to see baseball put on the agenda for the next meeting."

That concluded the General Public Comment portion of the agenda. The Board of Trustees moved on to discuss New Business-Items for Information.

VI. NEW BUSINESS

A. Items For Information

- 1. Administrative Contracts Title 20
- 2. Administrative Contracts Title 2

Ms. Bea Kaleva, District Counsel, went over the Administrative Contracts Title 20 and Administrative Contracts Title 2 with the Board of Trustees and discussed the differences between the two contracts regarding certification, termination, benefits, and procedures.

That concluded Items for Information. The Board of Trustees moved on to Consent Action Items.

B. Consent Action Items

- 1. 04.12.22 Board Meeting Minutes
- 2. Personnel Actions
- 3. Warrants
- 4. Out-Of-District Attendance Agreements (Non-Resident Students Attending HPS)
- 5. Out-Of-District Attendance Agreements (Helena Students Attending Other Districts)
- 6. Resolution Requesting County to Conduct 2023 Elections

Board Chair Luke Muszkiewicz commented. "At this point I would entertain a motion to approve our Consent Action Items."

Motion: Trustee Libby Goldes moved to approve the Consent Action Items. Board Vice

Chair Siobhan Hathhorn seconded the motion.

Public Comment: None.

Vote: 8-0 motion carries unanimously.

That concluded Consent Action Items. The Board of Trustees moved on to review Items for Action.

C. Items for Action

1. Finalized K-5 Music Curriculum

Central Principal, Nick Radley, commented. "Thank you, Board of Trustees. I've had the pleasure of working with the K-5 Elementary Music team over the last five or six years. I just want to present a little bit of background going into the adoption of what is hopefully our new Music Curriculum. In June of 2014, the National Coalition of Core Arts Standards released new national standards for various areas including music. The Office of Public Instruction in conjunction with Montana teachers adopted these national standards for the state of Montana, and then adopted them at the State Board of Public Education in 2006. Shortly after that, our teachers worked together to kind of bridge the gap between what our curriculum was and what the new standards were by creating "I can..." statements, which was consistent with the language we were using in our other curricular areas. In 2019 the team K-5 sat down to finish the work, and then COVID hit, so that brought us to this school year. Starting this year, the K-5 music team sat down, went through the standards, brought the "I can..." statements in, and came up with a completed document in March of 2022. Our K-5 music teachers, specifically Abby and Jennifer, presented to the Teaching and Learning Committee on April 6th, with a follow-up Q&A session on May 4th, and on behalf of District music teachers we are requesting Board approval of the finalized K-5 Music Curriculum for the Helena School District. I have been able to see the awesome work that the K-5 music educators have put together in my 12 years in the District, and what they've done with this document has made it accessible for all. It is a great piece of work."

Mrs. Joslyn Davidson, Curriculum Administrator, commented. "Nick has worked so hard with that group. To be honest if he hadn't been there, facilitating a lot of it, keeping the conversation alive, we probably wouldn't be here right now. I'm really proud of the work they've done, and he's done an amazing job helping."

Trustee Jennifer McKee commented. "I thought this was an extraordinary process. This is taking the fullness of language acquisition, the fullness of music as its own discipline and integrating it at age kindergarten throughout and it's just extraordinary."

Board Vice Chair Siobhan Hathhorn commented. "I just want to thank the music teachers that helped put this together. I think it's going to make our instruction even better. Thank you so much."

Abby Nyhof, music teacher, commented. "I want to say a big thank you to both Nick Radley and Joslyn Davidson for all their support throughout this process. I will say one of the big shifts in this curriculum over our previous document is it follows best practice in terms of teaching music

literacy that is reading and writing music notation to young children. It follows a language acquisition model where students experience sound before they see the notation, which is the same way we learn language. We learn to say the words and make the sounds before we learn what they look like. So that's a big shift from our previous document and should show great results in our students."

Trustee Libby Goldes commented. "This certainly was impressive having looked through it and all the different areas for each grade and how it builds on each other and the various materials and sources that you relied on. Very impressive. I can only imagine the amount of time that went into this collaboration. Does this have budget considerations? Are there new materials or things that will be needed to help you implement this curriculum?"

Ms. Davidson commented. "There are some, and I knew this was going to come to fruition at some point this year so we pre-planned for that and I worked back with Janelle, and we will be able to get those."

Trustee John McEwen commented. "Do the children get introduced to a variety of instruments, and do they learn anything about music history? Do you spend time on singing music repertoires?"

Ms. Nyhof commented. "I would say one of our biggest teaching tools are instruments that are part of the Orff Schulwerk approach which was created by Carl Orff. He created a line of instruments specifically for the elementary music classroom-they are xylophones, glockenspiels, and metallophones. They are pitched instruments that play about an octave and a half scale. The bars can be removed to scaffold the instruction so that it is easier for them to play, and the success level is immediate. You know, if a student can grasp a mallet and hit the bar, they can effectively make a sound, so we use those instruments in K-5 very extensively. We introduce the ukulele in some buildings, but we don't all have access to those to the same extent, but those are wonderful as a harmonic instrument and students can use them to accompany their own singing. We introduce the recorder typically in fourth or fifth grade as a precursor to their more advanced music instruction in middle school. The recorder works on breath support, finger dexterity, as well as note reading in the treble clef. Repertoire varies throughout the year. We use a lot of traditional folk songs because of their simplicity and their staying power. Our programs do focus significantly on repertoire. I would say we do address some music history, but our priority is hands on music making experiences in the elementary school. It's more likely to be incidental that we may move to a piece and then let the students know that this piece is from George Gershwin who lived in the early 1900s and was an American composer. Then we might move to the piece and experience some artwork along with the piece."

Trustee John McEwen commented. "What happens to students who get private lessons, in guitar, piano or flute for example. Do they get bored in class?"

Ms. Nyhof commented. "What we are doing is very different than an individualized piano instruction where they're getting that one-on-one attention. We don't do much piano class in elementary music. So, playing a xylophone is a different experience, than playing the piano. Playing the recorder and folk dancing is very different. I certainly have found that those students for me become leaders and role models in the class. They're able to help and assist their peers. When it gets to time for recorder, it's really difficult for me to go around and check fingers in an

efficient fashion. Those students who step up or show that prior knowledge are very helpful in assisting their peers and assisting in that process."

Board Chair Luke Muszkiewicz commented. "I would entertain a motion to approve the Finalized K-5 Curriculum."

Motion: Trustee Jennifer McKee moved to approve the Finalized K-5 Music Curriculum as presented. Trustee Jennifer Walsh seconded the motion.

Public Comment: None.

Vote: 8-0 motion carries unanimously.

2. <u>High School General Fund Budget Amendment</u>

Mrs. Janelle Mickelson commented regarding the High School General Fund Budget Amendment. "Before you is a resolution to amend the high school general fund budget. At the last meeting you proclaimed the need, at this meeting you are being asked to actually approve the general fund budget amendment for the high school. The amount of the amendment is \$231,691 and the financing source for the budget amendment is tuition receipts from East Helena High School."

Board Chair Luke Muszkiewicz commented. "At this point I would entertain a motion to approve the High School General Fund Budget Amendment."

Motion: Trustee Jennifer Walsh moved to approve the High School General Fund Budget Amendment. Trustee John McEwen seconded the motion.

Public Comment: None. **Vote:** 8-0 motion carries.

3. Meal Price Increases

Mr. Robert Worthy commented regarding Meal Price Increases. "Thank you. Since COVID hit, we've actually served a little over 2 million meals out of our schools. The high average the last two months has been about 7,00 meals a day. We have been going through about \$10,000 a month in just sacks for the food. Last month I spent \$191,000 in food costs in 18 days, and the month before that was over \$200,000. The problem is food cost and delivery fees are getting higher, but we're also getting subbed a lot because the items we want to get are not available. The items they substitute with are usually more expensive. So, talking about prices, we haven't had to change them for two years, because they were free due to the waivers. During COVID we were doing food outreach programs, and food packs. We were doing all kinds of things to get more food to families, and it was a huge success, but families have not had to pay for food for two years. So, we're looking at the costs of where we used to be, compared to where we need to be. In 2019, student breakfast K-12 cost \$1.45. That was pretty low even at that time. I've been calling around to other states and a lot of them are going somewhere from \$1.60 to over \$2.00 because the price of meals is so high. We are looking to charge \$2.00. In 2010 for K-5 student lunch, it was \$2.70, and for 6-12 lunch it was \$2.80. The proposed 2022-2023 price for K-5 student lunch is \$2.90 and 6-12 student lunch is \$3.00."

Ms. Ridgway, Chief of Staff, commented. "We are beginning a campaign to inform families to fill out the information (free and reduced lunch forms) and to articulate that this is going to be a significant change. I mean, two years is a long time. So, we've started and will continue to inform, to publicize, to push out on social media, and we will work with the press. We will have to continue to do it throughout the summer and into the fall. We are working with our principals as well to get the message out to families that this is a significant change."

Mr. Worthy commented. "We'll be doing some different flyers in our lunch program to remind families to fill out the free and reduced forms, because our summer program starts on June 13th. It's a good thing to also remind families if they were to get direct certified through other assistance programs, along with filling out the free and reduced lunch application, it creates a bigger number for our Community Eligibility program, so we get all schools free. If they get direct certified, it can help us get the whole school lunch for free for up to four years.

Ms. Ridgway, Chief of Staff, commented. "The free and reduced numbers help establish what our title allocation is from the federal government. So, the more we qualify the more likely we are to at least maintain or possibly increase our Title I finding which is significant."

Board Chair Luke Muszkiewicz commented. "At this point I would entertain a motion to approve the Meal Price Increases."

Motion: Board Vice Chair Siobhan Hathhorn moved to approve the Meal Price Increases. Trustee Jennifer Walsh seconded the motion.

Public Comment: None.

Vote: 8-0 motion carries unanimously.

4. CHS/HHS HVAC Duct Cleaning Bid

Mr. Rob Brewer, HSD Maintenance Manager, discussed the CHS/HHS HVAC Duct Cleaning Bid. Invitations to bid were published in the Helena Independent Record on April 17th, April 20th, and April 24th with complete bid packets available on April 18th. A pre-bid walk through was scheduled for April 26th. Sealed bids were accepted until 12:00 p.m. on April 29th. We had one bidder. The successful bidder for Capital High was HVAC Power Vac, LLC for a total bid of \$129,000. The successful bidder for Helena High was HVAC Power Vac, LLC for a total bid of \$109,000. Work would begin around June 10th with an estimated completion date of August 29th. We are in the range of what we would expect to pay for this size of a project. Every elementary (except for the new schools Bryant, Central, and Jim Darcy), both middle schools and PAL, have had their HVAC systems cleaned over the last 19 months.

Trustee Jennifer McKee commented. "Can you walk me through why we clean the ducts, and what is coming out of the ductwork?"

Neal Murray, Safety and Operations Manager, commented. "We have seen everything from fruit, feathers, pencils, paper, and primarily dust and hair. They don't look like the shiny silver vents that they should be. This company has specialized duct scrubbing equipment that gets all 360 degrees of these ducts, vents, and all the heating elements and cleans it practically spotless."

Trustee Jennifer Walsh commented. "Is there any kind of routine maintenance or suggested next times that these cleanings should happen?"

Mr. Brewer commented. "We change the filters three times a year on all the uninvents and the air handlers itself. That is a maintenance that we can perform. We should build it into our budget to make sure we are cleaning the HVAC ducts probably every 10 to 15 years in the buildings."

Board Chair Luke Muszkiewicz commented. "At this point I would entertain a motion regarding this recommendation."

Motion: Trustee John McEwen moved to approve the CHS/HHS HVAC Duct

Cleaning Bid. Trustee Libby Goldes seconded the motion.

Public Comment: None.

Vote: 8-0 motion carries unanimously.

5. Kessler Sewer Easement

Mr. Rob Brewer commented regarding the Kessler Sewer Easement. "The documents you have in front of you are asking for approval of the Kessler Sewer Easement. We have a letter from Ryan Leland, Public Works Director, stating if ever needed they (the city) will relocate the easement at their costs. They will bore under our parking lot, any and all damages at any time they will be liable for, and they will start no earlier than June 20th and no later than August 26th. If we ever decide to build there, the city will have to reroute at their expense."

Trent Scheuer, Utilities Maintenance Superintendent for the City of Helena, and Jamie Clark, City Engineer for the City of Helena, introduced themselves to the Board of Trustees and Superintendent Weltz.

Board Vice Chair Siobhan Hathhorn discussed that the Kessler Sewer Easement was brought twice for discussion to the Facilities and Maintenance Committee.

Trent Scheuer commented. "Our desire with this is to save our taxpayers and actually your taxpayers as well a significant amount of money."

Jamie Clark and Trent Scheuer discussed the details of the project, as well as the expected maintenance and costs associated with the project. They mentioned that there should be zero disturbance to the parking lot at Kessler.

Board Chair Luke Muszkiewicz commented. "At this point I would entertain a motion regarding this recommendation."

Motion: Trustee John McEwen moved to approve the Kessler Sewer Easement. Board Vice Chair Siobhan Hathhorn seconded the motion.

Public Comment: None.

Vote: 8-0 motion carries unanimously.

The Board moved on to review the action items regarding policy on the agenda. Board Chair Luke Muszkiewicz discussed that if the Board would like, it would be appropriate to consider a motion to rescind all six of the 1900 policies at once.

6. Policy 2005 School Year, Calendar, and Day

Mrs. Barb Ridgway commented. "Policy 2005 School Year, Calendar, and Day came before you last month and has come before the Policy Committee three times. There have been no changes since you last saw this policy."

Board Chair Luke Muszkiewicz commented. "At this point I would consider a motion."

Motion: Trustee Libby Goldes moved to approve Policy 2005 School Year, Calendar,

and Day. Trustee Janet Armstrong seconded the motion.

Public Comment: None.

Vote: 8-0 motion carries unanimously.

7. Policy 3070 Administration of Medication

Mrs. Barb Ridgway commented. "Policy 3070 Administration of Medication had two readings with the Policy Committee, and this is the second time it is coming before the full Board. There have been no changes since you last saw this policy, and this has been reviewed by all our nurses."

Board Chair Luke Muszkiewicz commented. "At this point I would entertain a motion regarding Policy 3070."

Motion: Board Vice Chair Siobhan Hathhorn moved to approve Policy 3070 Administration of Medication. Trustee John McEwen seconded the motion.

Public Comment: None.

Vote: 8-0 motion carries unanimously.

8. Policy 7061 Public Health Emergency

Mrs. Barb Ridgway commented. "We have discussed Policy 7061 Public Health Emergency at length over the last few meetings. It did go back to the Policy Committee and there are two changes on line six and seven. We removed the language *highly fatal*, and we added to line seven *a chemical or biological toxin*."

Board Chair Luke Muszkiewicz commented. "At this point I would entertain a motion."

Motion: Trustee John McEwen moved to approve Policy 7061 Public Health

Emergency. Trustee Jennifer Walsh seconded the motion.

Public Comment: None.

Vote: 8-0 motion carries unanimously.

- 9. Policy 1900 Temporary COVID-19 Policy
- 10. Policy 1901 Emergency Policy and Procedures
- 11. Policy 1902 Academic Variance Alternative Grading
- 12. Policy 1905 Student, Staff, and Community Health and Safety Needs
- 13. Policy 1906 Student Instruction
- 14. Policy 1907 School District Declaration of Emergency

Mrs. Barb Ridgway commented regarding the 1900 series of policies. "These policies were adopted to be temporary policies based on emergency declaration and that emergency declaration will end at the end of June-as should these policies.

Board Chair Luke Muszkiewicz commented. "At this point I would entertain a motion to rescind the 1900 series of policies."

Motion: Trustee Libby Goldes moved to rescind the 1900 series of policies, which includes Policies 1900, 1901, 1902, 1905, 1906, and 1907. Trustee Janet Armstrong seconded the motion.

Public Comment: None.

Vote: 8-0 motion carries unanimously.

15. Superintendent's Contract

Board Chair Luke Muszkiewicz reviewed and discussed Superintendent Weltz's proposed contract with the Trustees.

Trustee Libby Goldes commented. "I am very pleased to see this three-year contract. I remember being told that one of the best success measures for a District is the length of term of its superintendent. I also was told that in the state of Montana, the average duration of a superintendency was two years. So, we have a lot of things to do-we have student success measures that we'd like to increase, we need to look at our facilities options, and there are budgetary considerations-and to have a superintendent who is here and has shown a commitment to working on these areas for our district, and who has gotten to know us is really a strong point in our favor. To have somebody who is interested and willing to stay I think is important, and it gives the Board an opportunity to learn how to work with that superintendent, and to have the best communication possible. I'm looking forward to seeing all the great things that the District will be accomplishing under Superintendent Weltz's leadership."

Trustee Janet Armstrong commented. "I would just like to second what Trustee Goldes said especially since we've talked quite often about the end of ESSER funds and the fiscal cliff. It's crucial to have our superintendent stay in place. I think part of the reason we're in this is because we have had a lot of turnover, and so in order to go through the next couple of years, I'm just very

appreciative that we have a multiyear contract and I think it'll be beneficial for us."

Trustee Jennifer McKee commented. "My oldest child isn't even old enough to drive and I think that you are the fourth or fifth superintendent to serve while she has been in the Helena Public Schools. All of those people have brought strengths, they have made the District better, and they have pushed us down the road, but the constant disruption hasn't served students as well as continuity would have. I'm thankful that you want to be here. I remember my first couple of months on the Board, former Trustee Sarah Sullivan said that the best thing that a Board can do is hire someone you can trust and then trust them. I think you fit the bill."

Board Vice Chair Siobhan Hathhorn commented. "I think it's perfect timing that this comes right on the heels of sunsetting the 1900 series of our policies, like it or not, there has been a lot of focus on COVID. I'm excited to approve the superintendent contract and get back to doing what we do which is educate kids and making sure we have a healthy budget. I think those would be my two main things. I look forward to supporting you in those endeavors and having some time on your plate to get those things going and well instituted in a reasonable amount of time."

Board Chair Luke Muszkiewicz commented. "At this point I would entertain a motion regarding my recommendation to the Board."

Motion: Board Vice Chair Siobhan Hathhorn moved to approve Superintendent Weltz's Contract as presented. Trustee Jennifer Walsh seconded the motion.

Public Comment: None.

Vote: 8-0 motion carries unanimously.

That concluded Items for Action. The Board of Trustees moved on to Reports.

D. REPORTS

1. Helena Education Association Report

Jane Shawn, President of the Helena Education Association, commented. "Last night, Glen Wall and I had a wonderful evening at the HEF Celebration of Excellence dinner. HEA hosted a table with distinguished student Kyler Smith and his distinguished educator who also happens to be his mom, Buffy Smith. Glen and I sat with the whole Smith family-mom, dad, three boys and the fiancé. All three of the boys have been distinguished students. It was quite fun, and we had a really good time with such a nice family. 34 teachers were nominated for HEA's Educator of the Year, and 29 paras were nominated for HEA's para educator of the year. These represented 128 separate nominations from our membership. Per our bylaws, eight educators and six para educators will be on the official ballot. Voting will take place next Wednesday and Thursday, and the 2022 educator and para educator of the year will be recognized on Friday, May 20th. Para educator bargaining is set to begin on Monday May 16th, and teacher bargaining is continuing tomorrow at 4 p.m."

2. Budget & Finance Committee Report

Trustee John McEwen commented. "There was no meeting in April, so I have nothing to

report."

3. Teaching & Learning Committee Report

Trustee Jennifer McKee commented. "We met last Wednesday and heard a wonderful presentation about standards-based grading from Principal Wilkins, Principal Carter, and Principal Alberts. It was comprehensive and we had a great conversation. We have started to transition to it in grades K-5 and the transition will continue. It will change the way that communication occurs right now between schools and families. There will actually be much more of it so that families get a chance to touch base and see where their kids need improvement and where they don't need improvement. It was a great presentation."

4. Policy Committee Report

Trustee Libby Goldes commented. "We met on May 3rd, and all our policies except for one that we considered came to the Board today either for approval or for termination. Policy 3010 School Admissions will be coming to you later.

5. Facilities & Maintenance Committee Report

Committee Chair Siobhan Hathhorn commented. "The two issues that we mainly discussed were brought to the Board-that would be the sewer easement at Kessler and the HVAC at both of the high schools. We are still in the RFQ negotiating process for our Facilities Master Plan, and the Kaleva Law Firm is negotiating a price and coming up with some options for us and we're waiting for that to come forward."

6. Health Benefits Committee Report

Trustee John McEwen commented. "The Health Benefits Committee meeting has been postponed until the end of May. Yesterday a subcommittee met to look at an arrangement with a chiropractic firm to come up with a better deal for employees. That subcommittee report will go before the full committee at the end of May. We also received some information about plan design changes such as changing deductible, copays, and maximum out of pocket in order to save money."

7. Wellness Committee Report

Trustee Jennifer Walsh commented. "We met on April 20th, and we welcomed two new members. Principal Tia Wilkins and Principal Trish Klock are joining our Wellness Committee for Nutrition and Physical Activity. We have met a couple of times with them, and the team and it's been wonderful. We have two subcommittees- there's a physical activity piece and a nutrition piece. One of the common themes that continuously comes around at the physical activity meeting is recess and taking that away as a disciplinary action. That happened when I grew up and it still happens. It's super important that we get our kids out at recess time. To step away from curriculum and relieve stress. We have also been talking about an increase in obesity. I have seen a couple of different articles pop up

that this is a nationwide movement, which was really neat to hear. I look forward to further conversations and bringing that to the Board. Something else exciting is we're trying to get our high school athletes into our elementary schools. We talked about for third through fifth grades-the high school students would come in and work with the kids, be role models for the kids, and get them active. For the nutrition side, we had a very robust conversation with Robert Worthy. We discussed that food will not be free in the fall and some ideas about what communication might look like to make sure that families are aware of that. Robert had mentioned there were some opportunities to use some funds to do things like replace trays and those kinds of things that make a difference for our children. It's going to be a very exciting fall and I look forward to all the things to come."

8. Montana School Boards Association Report

Board Chair Luke Muszkiewicz commented. "There are three upcoming opportunities. The MTSBA new Trustee orientation will start on May 17th. It will be three, 2-hour sessions, on May 17th, May 24th, and May 31st. I'm happy to report that both of our incoming Trustees-that we will swear in next week-have both signed up for that. For those of us who are already on the Board, I think it's still a great opportunity to learn some of the basics of good boardsmanship. You can sign up for that yourself through the MTSBA website. Those sessions are live via ZOOM, but they are also recorded so you can watch them later if that is more convenient. On Thursday, June 9th, we'll have the MTSBA Annual Meeting. This will be from 1:00 p.m. to 4:30 p.m. I would like some Trustees to consider joining me for that. That will be both in-person and virtual. Basically, what that is, for those of you who joined in the delegate assembly, it's kind of similar to that. It's the final hurdle that all of our legislative advocacy proposals need to go through to be solidified into our legislative platform. So, it's very important in that regard and just a good opportunity to learn about some of the dynamics in the legislature and what we anticipate in the next session. We'll also hold elections for new MTSBA leadership. I will step down as a current president and move into my role as past president. We're going to hold a social outing for any attendees, and it's going to be a trip to the Gates of the Mountains with a catered dinner and boat tours. I think that kicks off at around 5:30 p.m. or 6:00 p.m., but if you register for that meeting, then you can elect that as an optional thing to do, and you are welcome to bring a guest. On Friday, June 10th, MTSBA will hold its School Board Leadership Training from 8:30 a.m.- 4:00 p.m. and it will be inperson or virtual. There are some great professional development opportunities ahead and some important governance responsibilities in the annual meeting."

That concluded the Reports portion of the agenda. The Board of Trustees moved on to discuss Upcoming Meetings.

VII. UPCOMING MEETINGS

Board Chair Luke Muszkiewicz commented regarding upcoming meetings. "This is obviously a time of transition as we say goodbye to Trustee Goldes and Trustee McEwen, we prepare to certify our election results, and welcome incoming Trustees, Lois Fitzpatrick and Kay Satre. That will occur at a special board meeting next Tuesday, May 17th at 5:30pm. I'm going to ask that you arrive at 5:00 p.m. so that we can take Board photos. At the meeting, the first step is to canvass the

election results and that is something that this existing Board does. Once we canvass the election results, we will go ahead and swear in our two new Trustees. I presume that County Superintendent Chaney will be able to join us and administer the oath. Once those new Trustees are sworn in, they take a seat and they're members of the Board. The next step will be reorganizing our Board which really will entail the Board appointing a Chair, Vice Chair, and then the District Clerk. There will be a general public comment period, but it's just intended to be a short meeting to do the important work of canvassing our election results and swearing in our new Trustees. We have two of our Trustees who are current committee chairs who are retiring from the Board, so there's going to be some shuffling of committees. The incoming chair will slot those new Trustees into their committee assignments, and then we'll have some decisions to make around who our next committee leadership will be. So we hope to get that done in the two to three weeks following that reorganization of the board. So hopefully we can meet in our new committees in June. On May 24th, we'll hold our final work session of the academic year at Warren. After that we will have our regular Board meeting in June. We will send an email out about our July summer Board retreat."

VIII. BOARD COMMENTS

Each Board of Trustee, and Superintendent Weltz, individually thanked Trustee Libby Goldes and Trustee John McEwen in great detail for their years of incredible service and dedication as Trustees for the Helena Public School District. Trustee Libby Goldes and Trustee John McEwen were presented with a plaque in recognition of their service on the Board.

Trustee Jennifer McKee commented. "We had a public comment about the integrity of this last election, and I just didn't want it to go unaddressed. The authority that all of us have and that every elected representative in our country has, is borrowed from the public and that authority comes from elections and they are the bedrock of our democracy. When that is questioned, I just think it needs to be noted that democracies are destroyed by cynicism and our elections are secure."

IX. LITIGATION STRATEGY SESSION-CLOSED

The Board will meet in a closed (executive) session with its attorney to discuss pending litigation.

The Board entered closed session at 9:47 p.m.

Board Chair Luke Muszkiewicz reentered open session at 11:04 p.m.

X. ADJOURNMENT

Board Chair Luke Muszkiewicz adjourned the meeting at 11:04 p.m.

Candice Delvaux, Recording Secretary Date